
Vale of White Horse District Council
Council agenda - Wednesday, 15 July 2015

Page 1

Council Agenda
Contact: Steven Corrigan, Democratic Services Manager
Telephone number 01235 547675
Email: steven.corrigan@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 7 July 2015
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Summons to attend
a meeting of Council
to be held on Wednesday 15 July 2015 at 7.00 pm 
The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


Vale of White Horse District Council
Council agenda - Wednesday, 15 July 2015

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the public including the press

Council's vision 

The council’s vision is to take care of your interests across the Vale with enterprise, 
energy and efficiency.  

1. Apologies for absence 

To receive apologies for absence.

2. Minutes 
(Pages 5 - 10) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the council minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 
2015 (attached).  

3. Declarations of interest 
  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

4. Chairman's announcements 
  
To receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5. Statements, petitions and questions from the public relating to 
matters affecting council. 

  
Any statements, petitions and questions from the public under standing order 32 will be 
made or presented at the meeting.

6. Urgent business 
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent.  

7. Petitions under standing order 13 
  
To receive petitions from members of the council under standing order 13 (if any).

8. Questions under standing order 12 
 
 
To receive questions from members of the council under standing order 12.



Vale of White Horse District Council
Council agenda - Wednesday, 15 July 2015

Page 3

1. Question from Councillor Helen Pighills to Councillor Charlotte Dickson, Cabinet 
member for leisure.

In June 2013, after completion of the Leisure and Sports Facilities Study, the Cabinet 
member for leisure told Council there was to be a 'follow up piece of work' that would 
include surveys of community or village halls. In December 2014, the Cabinet member 
told us the report on this survey would be available in the summer of 2015. When can we 
expect this report to be published?

2. Question from Councillor Catherine Webber to Councillor Mike Murray, Cabinet 
member for planning policy. 

What policies are in place regarding housing development in or adjacent to our air quality 
management areas (AQMAs)?

3. Question from Councillor Bob Johnston to Councillor Matthew Barber, Leader of 
the council.

Why was the north east area committee disbanded and merged with Abingdon, making 
that committee twice the size of the other area committees?

4. Question from Councillor Debby Hallett to Councillor Mike Murray, Cabinet 
member for planning policy.

The loss of the last petrol station in Botley is an environmental concern when it means 
thousands of extra cars must travel on the already over-capacity A34 to Peartree, 
Heyford Hill or Abingdon in order to fill the tank. What policy changes could the Vale 
consider to address this environmental sustainability issue?

9. Recommendations from Cabinet, individual Cabinet members, and 
committees 

  
On 7 July 2015 Councillor Mike Murray, Cabinet member for planning policy, took 
decisions to recommend Council to make the Drayton and Great Coxwell neighbourhood 
plans part of the Development Plan for Vale of White Horse. The individual Cabinet 
member decisions were circulated to all councillors on 7 July 2015.

Recommendations to Council:

1. to make the Drayton Neighbourhood Plan part of the Development Plan for Vale of 
White Horse;

2. to make the Great Coxwell Neighbourhood Plan part of the Development Plan for 
Vale of White Horse.



Vale of White Horse District Council
Council agenda - Wednesday, 15 July 2015

Page 4

10. Report of the leader of the council 
  
(1) Urgent cabinet decisions 

In accordance with the overview and scrutiny procedure rules, a cabinet decision 
can be taken as a matter of urgency, if any delay by the call-in process would 
seriously prejudice the council’s or the public’s interest.  Treating the decision as a 
matter of urgency must be agreed by the chairman of the Scrutiny Committee and 
must be reported to the next meeting of the council, together with the reasons for 
urgency.

To receive any details of urgent cabinet decisions taken since the last ordinary 
meeting of the council, (if any).

(2) Delegation of cabinet functions

To receive details of any changes to the leader’s scheme of delegation.  

(3) Matters affecting the authority arising from meetings of joint committees, 
partnerships and other meetings

To receive the report of the leader (if any).  

11. Notices of motion under standing order 11 
  
To receive the following notices of motion under standing order 11.

(1) Motion to be proposed by Councillor Gervase Duffield: 

This Council requests that the Environment Agency commission an independent 
review into the implications of the proposed Oxford Flood Alleviation Scheme, 
especially relating to possible flood risks in areas of the Vale downstream of 
Abingdon.

(2) Motion to be proposed by Councillor Gervase Duffield: 

That this Council thanks the staff for their hard work during the recent round of 
elections in the Vale. The complexity of the elections this year is noted given the 
combination of parliamentary, district and parish council elections all being held on 
one day meant that well over 1,300 nomination papers had to be checked and well in 
excess of 130,000 ballot papers were counted over the three days of the count. The 
efforts of the electoral staff and others throughout the Council and beyond is 
recognised and appreciated.

Council also welcomes the consultation and Interim Report published by the 
Returning Officer into the conduct of the elections. Council notes that the Community 
Governance and Electoral Issues Committee will review the above report and a 
further report covering the cost of the district and parish elections and make any 
further recommendations to Council in due course.



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes 

Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Co.1

Minutes
of the annual meeting of the
Council
held on Wednesday 20 May 2015 at 7.00 pm
at The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 

Members: Councillors Mike Badcock, Alice Badcock, Eric Batts, Matthew Barber, 
Edward Blagrove, Yvonne Constance, Roger Cox, Margaret Crick, Stuart Davenport, 
Charlotte Dickson, St John Dickson, Gervase Duffield, Katie Finch, Robert Hall, 
Debby Hallett, Jenny Hannaby, Anthony Hayward, Dudley Hoddinott, Simon Howell, 
Bob Johnston, Monica Lovatt, Sandy Lovatt, Ben Mabbett, Mike Murray, Chris Palmer, 
Helen Pighills, Judy Roberts, Robert Sharp, Janet Shelley, Emily Smith, Reg Waite, 
Elaine Ware, Catherine Webber  

Officers: David Buckle, Steven Corrigan, Susan Harbour, Margaret Reed and 
Anna Robinson

Number of members of the public: 4

Councillor Mike Badcock in the Chair for item 1.

Co.1 Election of chairman 

RESOLVED:  to appoint Councillor Mike Badcock as chairman of the 
council for the ensuing year.

Councillor Badcock read out the oath of office, signed his declaration of acceptance 
of office and made an acceptance speech.
He welcomed newly elected councilors to the Council.
He thanked his escort, Councillor Marilyn Badcock, and Councillor Eric Batts, his Vice-
Chairman for the past two years, for their support. He thanked Karen Claridge, 
Yvonne Cutler-Greaves, Clare Kingston and the Corporate Strategy team and Julia 
Leppard for their support in fund raising for his charities. £4,082.61 was raised for his 
chosen charities during the past year. He presented the Royal British Legion Poppy 
Appeal with a cheque for £2,500 at the meeting. He advised that his charities for the 
forthcoming year were Helen and Douglas House and the Royal British Legion Poppy 
Appeal.

Co.2 Appointment of vice-chairman 

RESOLVED:  to appoint Councillor Reg Waite as Vice-Chairman of 
the council for the ensuing year.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes 

Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Co.2

The Chairman presented Councillor Reg Waite with the Vice-Chairman’s chain of 
office.
Councillor Reg Waite read out the oath of office, signed his 
declaration of acceptance of office and made an acceptance speech.

Co.3 Apologies for absence 
Councillors Vicky Jenkins, Mohinder Kainth, Chris McCarthy, Julia Reynolds and 
Henry Spencer sent their apologies for absence.

Co.4 Minutes 
RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the Council meeting held on 
18 February 2015 and agree that the chairman signs them.

Co.5 Declarations of interest 
None.

Co.6 Chairman's announcements 
The Chairman thanked Councillor Jenny Hannaby for her attendance and assistance 
with fundraising for the Poppy Appeal at Dalton Barracks.

Co.7 Urgent business 
The Chairman noted that the council’s standing orders did not provide for public 
participation at the annual meeting of Council.  However, with the agreement of 
Council he had agreed to take one item of business to consider a petition relating to 
the outdoor pool in Abingdon because consideration of this item at the next meeting in 
July would be beyond the consultation period. 

Co.8 Petitions under standing order 13 
None.

Co.9 Election of leader of Council 
RESOLVED: to elect Councillor Matthew Barber as leader of the 
Council for a four year period ending on the day of the next post 
election annual meeting.

Councillor Matthew Barber appointed Councillor Roger Cox as the deputy leader of 
Council and Councillors Eric Batts, Charlotte Dickson, Sandy Lovatt, Mohinder Kainth, 
Mike Murray and Elaine Ware as Cabinet members with portfolios as follows:
Councillor Matthew Barber Leader, finance, economic development and                   

property
Councillor Eric Batts HR and technical services

   Councillor Roger Cox      Deputy Leader, planning (development 
management and enforcement), assets of 
community value, housing and environmental health

Councillor Charlotte Dickson   Leisure
Councillor Sandy Lovatt      Legal and democratic services, including community   

safety
Councillor Mohinder Kainth       IT
Councillor Mike Murray        Planning policy, including the local plan

Page 6



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes 

Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Co.3

Councillor Elaine Ware         Corporate strategy, including grounds maintenance 
and waste

The revised Leader’s scheme of delegation is appended to these minutes.

Co.10 Appointments to committees, panels and joint 
committees for 2015/16 

Council considered the report of the head of legal and democratic services on the 
appointment of those committees and joint committees which are required to be 
politically balanced together with the Licensing Acts Committee, area committees and 
appointments to joint bodies.
RESOLVED: to 

1. appoint the following committees and panels for the 2015/16 year and to appoint 
the membership, substitutes and chairmen and vice-chairmen as indicated to sit on 
them: 

Names Planning Committee, 11 Members 

Conservative (8) Liberal Democrat (3)
Eric Batts Jenny Hannaby
Roger Cox Bob Johnston
Stuart Davenport Catherine Webber
Anthony Hayward
Sandy Lovatt (Vice-Chairman)
Chris McCarthy
Robert Sharp (Chairman)
Janet Shelley

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group provided they have 
received the appropriate training.

Names Scrutiny Committee, 9 Members         

Conservative (7) Liberal Democrat (2)
Alice Badcock (Vice-Chairman) Debby Hallett
Edward Blagrove Judy Roberts (Chairman)
Katie Finch
Vicky Jenkins
Monica Lovatt 
Ben Mabbett
Chris Palmer

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group (not Cabinet 
members).  

Page 7



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes 

Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Co.4

Names Joint Scrutiny Committee, 5 
Members

Conservative (4) Liberal Democrat (1)
Alice Badcock Judy Roberts (Co-Chairman)
Katie Finch
Monica Lovatt
Ben Mabbett

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group (not Cabinet 
members).  

Names Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee, 4 Members

Conservative (3) Liberal Democrat (1)
Simon Howell (Co-Chairman) Dudley Hoddinott
Chris Palmer
Henry Spencer 

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group.

Names Community Governance and Electoral 
Issues Committee, 6 Members

Conservative (5) Liberal Democrat Group (1)
Edward Blagrove Debby Hallett
Yvonne Constance (Chairman)
Charlotte Dickson
Gervase Duffield
Ben Mabbett

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group.

Names General Licensing Committee, 12 
Members

Conservative (9) Liberal Democrat Group (3)
Mike Badcock (Vice-Chairman) Margaret Crick
Charlotte Dickson (Chairman) Jenny Hannaby
St John Dickson Dudley Hoddinott
Robert Hall 
Ben Mabbett
Chris McCarthy

Page 8



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes 

Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Co.5

Names General Licensing Committee, 12 
Members

Julia Reynolds
Robert Sharp
Reg Waite

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group provided they have 
received the appropriate training.

Names Licensing Acts Committee, 12 
Members

Conservative (9) Liberal Democrat Group (3)
Mike Badcock (Chairman) Margaret Crick
Charlotte Dickson (Vice-Chairman) Jenny Hannaby
St John Dickson Dudley Hoddinott
Robert Hall 
Ben Mabbett
Chris McCarthy
Julia Reynolds
Robert Sharp
Reg Waite

NO SUBSTITUTES

Names Appeals Panel, 3 Members

Conservative (2) Liberal Democrat Group (1)
Matthew Barber Debby Hallett
Roger Cox

SUBSTITUTES: All other councillors from the relevant political group.

2. appoint all local members representing the wards covered by the relevant area 
committees as set out in the map attached to the report of the head of legal and 
democratic services to the annual meeting of Council on 20 May 2015 to those 
committees for the 2015/16 municipal year with the following chairmen and vice 
chairmen: 
 Abingdon – Mike Badcock (Chairman) Edward Blagrove (Vice-Chairman)
 Faringdon – Simon Howell (Chairman) Eric Batts (Vice-Chairman)
 Wantage – St John Dickson (Chairman) Ben Mabbett (Vice-Chairman)

3. appoint Monica Lovatt as the council’s representative on the Oxfordshire Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Gervase Duffield as substitute; 

4. appoint Chris McCarthy as the council’s representative and Sandy Lovatt as an 
observer substitute on the Thames Valley Police and Crime Panel. 

Page 9



Vale of White Horse District Council – Council minutes 

Wednesday, 20 May 2015 Co.6

Co.11 Petition debate - Abingdon Outdoor Pool 

Ms Naomi Richardson presented a petition to save the outdoor pool in Abingdon.

In her address she referred to the outdoor pool as a vital outdoor amenity for 
Abingdon and the surrounding area. She highlighted the health and safety benefits of 
providing an alternative swimming option to the River Thames, the health benefits for 
children and the wider economic benefits to the town arising from increased visitor 
numbers attracted to Abingdon by the outdoor pool.
Councillor Barber, Leader of the council, responded that there was no intention to 
close the facility. He reported that initial responses to the public consultation on the 
future of the Abbey Meadows indicated over 80% of respondents were in favour of 
retaining the outdoor pool. £500,000 of funding had been identified to invest in the 
future of Abbey Meadows.
A number of other councillors spoke in support of the facility and welcomed the 
petition. The pool was a popular attraction, required investment to undertake repairs 
and bring the facility up to date and was an asset to Abingdon.    
Council agreed to refer the petition to Cabinet to consider as part of its deliberation on 
the future of Abbey Meadows.
RESOLVED: to refer the petition to Cabinet for consideration as part of its 
consideration on the future of Abbey Meadows.

Co.12 Report of the leader of the council 
The leader of the council provided an update on the move to the temporary council 
offices in Milton Park and thanked officers for their continued positive reaction to the 
situation following the fire at the Crowmarsh council offices in January 2015. 

In accordance with the overview and scrutiny procedure rules, Council noted that the 
following decisions were taken as a matter of urgency since the last Council meeting:

 on 23 February 2015 Councillor Mike Murray took a decision to undertake a 
Regulation 18 issues and scope consultation for the Science Vale Area 
Action Plan. The chairman of the scrutiny committee agreed to waive call-in 
to allow the consultation process to begin recognising that the committee 
had commented on the plan;

 on 13 March 2015 Councillor Matthew Barber took a decision to transfer 
£45,000 from the capital contingency budget within the provisional capital 
programme to the approved capital programme and to create a capital 
budget for the purchase of new polling booths for the May 2015 elections. 
The chairman of the scrutiny committee agreed to waive call-in to allow a 
formal order before the end of the financial year and to ensure delivery in 
time for the elections;

 on 17 March 2015 Councillor Matthew Barber took a decision to claim grant 
money from the Department of Communities and Local Government 
Building Foundations to fund the construction of the Milton Bioscience 
Research and Innovation Centre. The chairman of the scrutiny committee 
agreed to waive call-in because any delay caused by the call-in process 
could prejudice both the council's and the public's interests.

The meeting closed at 7.45pm 

Page 10


	Agenda
	2 Minutes

